
 

Thursday, September 15, 2022 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89310450769 

 

Meeting ID: 

893 1045 0769 



 

2 
 

 
 

 

 

 

a.) Agenda          3 

b.) Minutes of June 23, 2022 Meeting     5 

c.) Minutes of July 20, 2022 Meeting     9 

d.) Bill List: Schedule #841       10 

e.) Bill List: Schedule #842       21 

f.) Bill List: Schedule #843       24 

g.) Management Report        37 

h.) Circulation         40 

i.) Turnstile Count         44 

j.) Electronic Resources        45 

k.) Book Stock         47 

l.)      Assurance of Application for State Aid for  

     Library Construction Program: Will Library Sustainable  

     HVAC System Replacement and Improvement Project  48 

m.) Education Law §273-a, Commissioner’s Regulation §90.12 50   

  

 



 

3 
 

 
 

 

YONKERS PUBLIC LIBRARY 
AGENDA FOR BOARD MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 15, 2022 
 

 
MINUTES   
 

[ACTION ITEM] Approve Minutes of Meetings on June 23, 2022 and July 20, 2022. 
 
 
MANAGEMENT REPORT 
 
 
UNION REPRESENTATIVE’S REPORT  
  
      
WLS REPORT 
 
 
PERSONNEL REPORT 
 

[ACTION ITEM] 
Ratify the following appointments: 
Mintah, Lord, P/T Page, $15.00/hr, eff. 6/25/2022 
Thomas, Leah, P/T Page, $15.00/hr, eff. 6/25/2022 
Osei-Agyemang, Keziah, P/T Page, $15.00/hr, eff. 6/25/2022 
Mentzer, Hali, P/T Page, $15.00/hr, eff. 7/8/2022 
Wissman, Nancy, P/T Librarian I, $21.00/hr, eff. 7/8/2022 
Flores, Valentina, P/T Page, $15.00/hr, eff. 7/8/2022 
Slattery, Seana, P/T Page, $15.00/hr, eff. 7/8/2022 
Marte, Saredys, P/T Page, $15.00/hr, eff. 7/29/2022 
Lagual, Justine, P/T Page, $15.00/hr, eff. 8/5/2022 
Bangura, Sahara, P/T Page, $15.00/hr, eff. 8/19/2022 
Tolentino, Kristin, P/T Page, $15.00/hr, eff. 8/19/2022 
Pineda, Adriana, P/T Page, $15.00/hr, eff. 9/9/2022 

 
Acknowledge the following terminations: 
Iwuchukwu, Mbanefo Frank, Permanent Technical Support Specialist, $80,192.00/yr, eff. 
6/24/2022 
Tetteh, Jasmine, P/T Page, $15.00/hr, eff. 7/1/2022 
Shanmugam, Menaka, Permanent Clerk II, $52,076.00/yr, eff. 7/21/2022 (retired) 
Hogan, Erin, P/T Page, $15.00/hr, eff. 8/4/2022 
Pinto, Victoria, P/T Page, $15.00/hr, eff. 8/15/2022 
Bautista, Rocxana, P/T Page, $15.00/hr, eff. 8/22/2022 

 



 

4 
 

 
 

 

 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

Finance, Budget & Planning- Maron, Jannetti (chair), Sabatino 
 
Employee Relations – Maron, Puglia (chair), Duggan  
 
Buildings & Grounds – Maron, Giuffrida (chair) 
 
Policy – Maron, Ilarraza (chair), Puglia, Sabatino 
 
Fundraising & Development – Maron (chair), Jannetti 
 
Foundation Update  

 
 
RATIFY PAYMENT OF BILLS 
 

[ACTION ITEM]  Schedules #841, #842, #843 
 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
   
  
NEW BUSINESS 
 

Assurance and Authentication of Application for State Aid for Library Construction Program 
(FY 2022-2023): Will Library Sustainable HVAC System Replacement and Improvement 
Project (encl.) 
(Education Law § 273-a, Commissioner’s Regulation § 90.12 encl.) 
 
[ACTION ITEM] Early Close of All Buildings at 12:00pm on Friday, October 28, 2022 for Staff 
Development Day 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
 
NEXT MEETING DATE 
 
 Thursday, October 20, 2022 

 

 
 



 

5 
 

 
 

 

YONKERS PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD MEETING 

ELECTRONIC MEETING 
JUNE 23, 2022 

 

ATTENDANCE 
 

    TRUSTEES: Stephen Jannetti 
Joseph Puglia 
Hon. Michael Sabatino 
Patricia Duggan 

    LIBRARY DIRECTOR: 
 
    ASSISTANT LIBRARY DIRECTOR: 
 
    BUSINESS MANAGER:                                                                      

Jesse Montero 
 
Shauna Porteus 
 
Vivian Presedo 

  
    ADMINISTRATIVE SECRETARY: James Hackett 
 
    WLS BOARD REPRESENTATIVE: 

 
Trustee Puglia 

      
    UNION REPRESENTATIVE: 
 
    GUESTS: 

NONE 
 
Emily Power, Mary Robison, Fifer 
Charlie Loftus, Eileen Fusco 

 
The Board Meeting was held electronically via ZOOM ®, Conference ID# 863 2454 9079 
 
The Board Meeting began at 7:10 pm. 
 

 

MINUTES 
 
On motion of Trustee Puglia, seconded and unanimously carried, the Board approved the Minutes 
of the Meeting of May 19, 2022.  
 
 

MANAGEMENT REPORT  
 

 Director Montero announced the recent hiring of new Librarian Trainee Charlie Loftus. Charlie 
was hired from the Sarah Lawrence College Community Leadership Intern Program (CLIP) 
to work in the Riverfront Reference Department and is currently enrolled at Rutgers 
University. The Board welcomed Charlie. 
 
Director Montero reported that the Yonkers City Council adopted the Mayor’s proposed 
Executive Budget, which fully funded both YPL’s operating budget request for the fiscal year 



 

6 
 

 
 

 

ending in 2023 and its capital budget request of $1.4 million to begin renovations at Will 
Library. The capital budget in particular will allow for an urgently needed replacement of the 
building’s heating, ventilation and air conditioning (HVAC) equipment. 
 
Director Montero went on to discuss the recent multiple failures of the Will Library air 
conditioning chiller. It failed on May 11 at the Foundation Gala and again on May 22 and 
several attempts at repair since then were unsuccessful. The last attempt on Tuesday was a 
firmware upgrade to the 30-year-old chiller’s programming and although it restored air 
conditioning to some parts of the building, the situation remains uncertain. As a result, 
Yonkers Public Library has requested proposals to rent a chiller temporarily to provide air 
conditioning this summer while a more permanent solution is found. Director Montero thanked 
several City departments and agencies for their assistance and cooperation, as well as the 
entire Will Library team and administration for their patience working in uncomfortable 
conditions.  
 
Director Montero announced that YPL joined the Library Speakers Consortium, which is an 
organization that hosts a virtual author talk series featuring several award-winning and best-
selling authors every month. Library Speakers Consortium also allows member libraries to 
customize the service with each libraries’ own publicity and branding to promote and present 
the virtual author talk series. The service would launch for YPL on July 7 with Alka Joshi, 
author of The Henna Artist. 
 
Assistant Director Porteus updated the Board on the progress of the website and branding 
redesign. She was pleased to note that the adopted budget for the next fiscal year included 
funding to contract Library Market, a design agency that specializes in branding, marketing 
and technology solutions for libraries and would lead the process of redesigning the website, 
calendar and YPL brand. She presented samples of other libraries who are Library Market 
clients and she hoped the redesign would be complete in four to five months.   
 
Assistant Director Porteus discussed the expansion of several programs with Sarah 
Lawrence College and credited Dr. Kishauna Soljour, a Mellon Foundation public humanities 
fellow and professor at the college, with the partnership. Dr. Soljour has connected YPL with 
several students for internship experiences as part of the CLIP program, including the recently 
hired librarian trainee Charlie Loftus, as well as several other seniors that assist with local 
history, art gallery programming and social media and marketing outreach. Assistant Director 
Porteus also discussed Sarah Lawrence’s Childhood Development Institute, which provides 
programming such as the Community Adventure Play Experience (CAPE) at Riverfront 
Library, and will begin to provide professional development workshops for library staff and 
rethink early childhood education strategies. 
 
The Board was impressed with the new partnerships with other local cultural institutions and 
looked forward to the benefit it would bring to the community.  

 
 

UNION REPRESENTATIVE’S REPORT   
 

NONE 



 

7 
 

 
 

 

 
 

WLS REPORT  

 
NONE 

 

 
PERSONNEL REPORT  
 
 On motion of Trustee Duggan, seconded and unanimously carried, the Board ratified the following 
appointments: 

Loftus, Fifer Charlie, Librarian Trainee, $44,588.00/yr, eff. 5/27/2022 
Javier, Sade, P/T Page, $15.00/hr, eff. 5/27/2022 
Harber, Sophia, P/T Page, $15.00/hr, eff. 5/27/2022 

 

 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 
Finance, Budget & Planning- Maron, Jannetti (chair), Sabatino 
 
Chair Jannetti referred the Board to Director Montero’s management report on the budget 
update. Trustee Sabatino noted that the budget hearings with City Council went well and was 
pleased that YPL’s budget request was fully funded.  
 
Employee Relations – Maron, Puglia (chair), Duggan 
 
NONE 
 
Buildings & Grounds – Maron, Giuffrida (chair) 
 
NONE 
 
Policy – Maron, Ilarraza (chair), Puglia, Sabatino 
 
NONE 
 
Fundraising & Development – Maron (chair), Jannetti 
 
NONE 

 
  

PAYMENT OF BILLS  
 
On motion of Trustee Puglia, seconded and unanimously carried, the Board approved payment of 
bills as listed on Schedule #840. 
 
 



 

8 
 

 
 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
  

Director Montero suggested a collaborative approach between staff and trustees in the 
coming months on the policies that were discussed at recent meetings. He would review 
further with staff and then make recommendations to the Board on the policies of interest to 
them. 

 
 

NEW BUSINESS  

  
On motion of Trustee Puglia, seconded and unanimously carried, the Board approved the New York 
State 2021 Annual Report for Public and Association Libraries. 

 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 

NEXT BOARD MEETING DATE – Thursday, July 21, 2022 at Will Library 
 
 
On motion of Trustee Sabatino, the Meeting adjourned at 7:39 pm. 
 
 
 
 
Jesse Montero 
Library Director & Secretary 

  



 

9 
 

 
 

 

YONKERS PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD MEETING 

GRINTON I. WILL LIBRARY 
JULY 20, 2022 

 
ATTENDANCE 
 

    TRUSTEES: Nancy Maron 
Steven Jannetti 
Hon. Michael Sabatino 
 

    LIBRARY DIRECTOR: 
 
    ASSISTANT LIBRARY DIRECTOR: 
 
    BUSINESS MANAGER:                                                                      

Jesse Montero 
 
NONE 
 
NONE 

  
    ADMINISTRATIVE SECRETARY: NONE 
 
    WLS BOARD REPRESENTATIVE: 

 
NONE 

      
    UNION REPRESENTATIVE: 
 
    GUESTS: 

Brandon Neider 
 
Pat Carey 

 
A quorum was not present and as a result, the meeting was adjourned.  
 
 
 
 
 
Jesse Montero 
Library Director & Secretary  



 

10 
 

 
 

 

SCHEDULE: 841       

Yonkers Public Library 

Bill List June 2022 

  

Vendor Name Description 

CAPITAL FUNDS 

   Date       Amount 

HUMANSCALE CORPORATION LIBRARY FURNITURE 6/22/2022 20,284.30 
IMAGE ACCESS, INC. IMAGING CENTER-BOOKEDGE PLUS 6/22/2022 5,526.00 
KRUEGER INTERNATIONAL, INC. STRIVE LEG CHAIRS 6/7/2022 3,888.00 
MRA INTERNATIONAL DESKTOP PRO DESK400 G6 COMP 6/22/2022 6,755.16 
NATIONAL BUSINESS FURNITURE, LLC NAUTICAL 60" BENCHES 6/24/2022 4,237.75 
NATIONAL BUSINESS FURNITURE, LLC OUTDOOR FURNITURE-CRESTWOOD 6/7/2022 5,043.65 
SCHOOL OUTFITTERS PRESCHOOL CHAIRS 6/22/2022 798.68 

TOTAL  46,533.54 

CONTRIBUTIONS FUNDS 

AMAZON.COM BOOTCAMP 6/22/2022 73.67 
AMERICAN EXPRESS NETWORKING SOLUTIONS 6/30/2022 4.79 
B & H PHOTO & VIDEO RODE WIRELESS GO II MIC SYSTEM 6/14/2022 232.57 
BAIRD, ZAHRA REIMB EXP: MAKE MUSIC DAY 6/30/2022 63.41 
BENITEZ, SHANEQUA ARTIST BOOTCAMP-5/25 6/14/2022 200.00 
BUTLER, MAUREEN HOMEWORK HELPER-CREST 6/14/2022 45.00 
CAMPOVERDE, ANGELICA HOMEWORK HELPER-RIV 6/10/2022 367.50 
CAMPOVERDE, ANGELICA HOMEWORK HELPER-RIV 6/22/2022 450.00 
COOPER HEWITT SMITHSONIAN DUAL HOUSEHOLD MEMBERSHIPS (2) 6/30/2022 250.00 
DOLAN, DEBORAH GARDENING WITH NATIVE PLANTS 6/14/2022 75.00 
GALLAGHER, JOHN PROG:HONEY BEE/POLLINATORS 6/30/2022 450.00 
GENTLE GIANT MUSIC MAKE MUSIC DAY 6/21/22 6/22/2022 300.00 
GOVCONNECTION, INC. IPAD WI-FI 64 GB SGRAY 6/22/2022 315.05 
GOVCONNECTION, INC. TONER 6/22/2022 1,222.57 
HABER, ZEV MAKE MUSIC DAY 6/21/22 6/22/2022 275.00 
HAWKINS, SARAH HOMEWORK HELPER-CREST 6/22/2022 180.00 
HAWKINS, SARAH HOMEWORK HELPER-CREST 6/14/2022 262.50 
MONTERO, DANIEL JESSE REIMB EXP:LUNCH YPL MANAGER 6/30/2022 76.00 
MURPHY, PATRICK MAKE MUSIC DAY 6/21/22 6/22/2022 300.00 
NATIONAL NOTARY ASSOCIATION MEMBERSHIP (1 YR) 6/22/2022 69.00 
NEW YORK HISTORIAL SOCIETY SHIPPING EXPENSE 6/7/2022 98.19 
PENCILVESTER, LLC PROG:NORY WOBBLEBOT 6/7/2022 185.00 
SARAH LAWRENCE COLLEGE CLINT SMITH/KISHUANA SOLJOUR 6/10/2022 1,000.00 
SIEGAL, MARTIN HOMEWORK HELPER-WILL 6/22/2022 510.00 
SOLJOUR, KISHAUNA REIMB EXP: NEH SUMMER INSTITUTE 6/23/2022 2,493.30 
SOLOMON, GOLDA IN-PERSON PROG:POETRY/JAZZ 6/30/2022 375.00 

TOTAL   9,873.55 



 

11 
 

 
 

 

 

Vendor Name 

GRANTS 

Description    Date       Amount 

ACEVEDO, ZAFIRO FATHER'S DAY CRAFT-METRO 6/24/2022 150.00 

AMAZON.COM MISC EXP:WEST CTY FUNDING 6/22/2022 165.00 

DOLAN, DEBORAH PROG:GETTING SAVY W/SAGE PRESB 6/22/2022 75.00 

FILIBERTI, JOHN V. QUICKBOOKS JOSE ALVARADO 6/30/2022 420.00 

FRANCO, VALERIE ART LECTURE SERIES5/10/22 6/23/2022 300.00 

HABER, ZEV PROG:CHILDREN'S MUSIC-METRO 6/15/2022 275.00 

HAMED, JENNA PHOTOGRAPHY CLASSES-METRO 6/6/2022 650.00 

JONES ARCHER, MARION PROG:JUNETEENTH DANCE-METRO 6/24/2022 400.00 

NAVARRETE, FRANCISCO PORG:MARIACHI BAND-METRO 6/6/2022 450.00 

PETITE CONCERTS CONCERT W/CHIE & PAUL-METRO 6/6/2022 275.00 

ZABER, ZEV PROG:CHILDREN'S MUSIC-METRO 6/22/2022 275.00 

TOTAL   3,435.00 

 

  



 

12 
 

 
 

 

  



 

13 
 

 
 

 

  



 

14 
 

 
 

 

  



 

15 
 

 
 

 

  



 

16 
 

 
 

 

  



 

17 
 

 
 

 

  



 

18 
 

 
 

 

  



 

19 
 

 
 

 

  



 

20 
 

 
 

 

  



 

21 
 

 
 

 

SCHEDULE: 842       

Yonkers Public Library   

 Bill List July 2022 

Vendor Name 
CAPITAL FUNDS 

Description    Date       Amount 

BECKER'S SCHOOL SUPPLIES TODDLER BIG BOOK DISPLAY 7/13/2022 410.39 
DEMCO, INC. MOBILE BROWSER BOX 7/13/2022 2,185.00 
GOVCONNECTION, INC. COLOR LASERJET M479 PRINTERS 7/13/2022 2,463.16 
NATIONAL BUSINESS FTRE, LLC DOUBLE TIER LOCKERS 7/13/2022 2,154.10 
SCHOOL OUTFITTERS PRESCHOOL ACTIVITY TABLES 7/13/2022 1,119.48 

TOTAL 

 

CONTRIBUTIONS FUNDS 

  8,332.13 

AMAZON.COM MISC EXPENSES (3 INVOICES) 7/20/2022 40.52 
AMERICAN MUSEUM NATURAL HIST EXTENDING EXPIRED VOUCHERS 7/13/2022 25.00 
BELLA VISTA DELI BOARD MEETING 7/20/2022 7/27/2022 167.00 
BURGER, ALAN PROF SERVICES:STRATEGIC PLAN 7/20/2022 7,333.00 
DIA ART FOUNDATION MEMBERSHIP 7/20/2022 500.00 
HORTON, CAMILLE ZUMBA GOLD INSTRUCTION 7/20/2022 150.00 
TOLLS BY MAIL PORT AUTHORITY NY & NJ 7/27/2022 20.34 
TRACSYSTEMS BARCODE SCANNER 7/13/2022 484.15 
YONKERS DOWNTOWN BID 2022 RIVERFEST 7/20/2022 80.00 

TOTAL  

 

GRANTS 

  8,800.01 

ARCH FOR KIDS, LLC SUPERHERO HOMES-METRO 7/13/2022 350.00 
DOLAN, DEBORAH NATURE JOURNALING-PRESB FUND 7/27/2022 75.00 
DOLAN, DEBORAH NATURE JOURNALING-PRESB FUND 7/13/2022 75.00 
GIBBONS FAMILY FITNESS SENIOR FITNESS-PRESB FUND 7/13/2022 95.00 
GIBBONS FAMILY FITNESS SENIOR FITNESS-PRESB FUND 7/6/2022 475.00 
MARKOWITZ, ROBERT PROG:CHILDREN MUSICAL -METRO 7/13/2022 750.00 
VAGIAS, JIM OCEANS OF POSSIBILITIES-METRO 7/18/2022 800.00 
WALKER, CYNTHIA KATORI'S LITTLE SHAKERS-METRO 7/13/2022 700.00 
YONKERS PARKING AUTHORITY KISHAUNA SOLJOUR-MELLON 7/13/2022 293.49 

TOTAL   3,613.49 

 
  



 

22 
 

 
 

 

  



 

23 
 

 
 

 

  



 

24 
 

 
 

 

SCHEDULE: 843       

Yonkers Public Library 

Bill List August 2022 

  

Vendor Name 
CAPITAL FUNDS 

Description Date       Amount 

ARGENTO & SON, INC SELF-PROPEL LAWNMOWER 8/17/2022 799.00 
GOVCONNECTION, INC NSA SOICWALL 8/4/2022 2,292.58 
GOVCONNECTION, INC SONICWALL SWITCH 8/4/2022 3,576.84 
STERLING SANITARY SUPPLY CORP ENVIRO BRAND 17" BURNISHER 8/4/2022 1,985.00 
STERLING SANITARY SUPPLY CORP IMPO-XL BATTERY SCRUBBER 8/4/2022 2,785.00 
STERLING SANITARY SUPPLY CORP TENNANT OS3 DEMO GENERATOR 8/4/2022 4,980.00 

TOTAL 

CONTRIBUTIONS FUNDS 

  16,418.42 

AMERICAN EXPRESS NETWORK SOLUTIONS 8/31/2022 4.79 
AMERICAN EXPRESS NETWORK SOLUTIONS 8/2/2022 9.58 
GOVCONNECTION, INC TONER:PUBLIC TRAC MACHINES 8/23/2022 2,598.77 
GROUNDWORK HUDSON VALLEY PLANNING/EXECUTING EDIBLE BEDS 8/31/2022 6,992.16 
HAMED, JENNA MODERATOR ARTIST TALK (3/HRS) 8/16/2022 250.00 
METRO GROUP BALANCE DUE 8/2/2022 53.67 
NJ E-Z PASS UNPAID TOLLS (2) 8/2/2022 17.06 
PLDA 914 INC. GIVING GUIDE 8/2/2022 77.00 
PROFESSIONAL BK CLUB GURU (PBC) ANNUAL CONSORTIUM MEMBERSHIP 8/16/2022 6,500.00 
RODRIGUEZ, KIKITO INSTALLATION OF GALLERY EXHBIT 8/17/2022 850.00 
TOLLS BY MAIL CONVENTION BY MRA (CARLOS) 8/31/2022 23.50 
TRACSYSTEMS, INC UNIPRINT ANNUAL SUPP & MAINT 8/31/2022 9,557.00 

TOTAL   26,933.53 

 

GRANTS 
   

ALL BLACK ERRYTHANG, LLC AUTHOR TALK-METRO 8/4/2022 250.00 
AMAZON.COM, LLC MISC EXP GARDEN-WEST CTY 8/17/2022 74.47 
AMAZON.COM, LLC MISC EXP-MELLON 8/17/2022 186.98 
AMAZON.COM, LLC PHOTO PRINTER-METRO 8/4/2022 200.49 
ARCH FOR KIDS, LLC FLOATING CITIES WORKSHOP-METRO 8/17/2022 350.00 
ARCH FOR KIDS, LLC UNDERWATER WORKSHOP-METRO 8/4/2022 350.00 
ARCH FOR KIDS, LLC SUPER HERO WORKSHOP-METRO 8/17/2022 350.00 
ARCH FOR KIDS, LLC PROG:CORAL REEF-METRO 8/26/2022 700.00 
DERENTIIS, ROSETTA TECHNOLOGY CLASSES-WEST CTY 8/31/2022 270.00 
DOLAN, DEBORAH GREEN TEAM PROG-METRO 8/4/2022 75.00 
DOLAN, DEBORAH NATURE JOURNALING-WEST CTY 8/31/2022 75.00 
DOLAN, DEBORAH NATURE JOURNALING-METRO 8/4/2022 150.00 
DOLAN, DEBORAH GREEN TEAM PROG-WEST CTY 8/17/2022 150.00 
HUDSON RIVER MUSEUM OF WEST GRANT EXPENSES-METRO 8/26/2022 21,044.72 
VAGIAS, JIM PROG:HOLIDAYS -METRO 8/17/2022 475.00 

TOTAL   24,701.66 

 



 

25 
 

 
 

 

  



 

26 
 

 
 

 

  



 

27 
 

 
 

 

  



 

28 
 

 
 

 

  



 

29 
 

 
 

 

  



 

30 
 

 
 

 

  



 

31 
 

 
 

 

  



 

32 
 

 
 

 

  



 

33 
 

 
 

 

  



 

34 
 

 
 

 

  



 

35 
 

 
 

 

YPL Operating Budget Fiscal 2023        
July         

Code Account Name 
Adopted 
Budget 

Current Budget 
(w/ transfers) 

Spent Previous 
Months 

Spent This 
Month (July) YTD Balance % used 

101 Salaries 6,578,527 6,578,527 0 359,230 359,230 6,219,297 5.46% 

103 Temp Services 615,914 615,914 0 33,294 33,294 582,620 5.41% 

150 Termination Payments 35,000 35,000 0 3,393 3,393 31,607 9.69% 

198 Overtime 419,880 419,880 0 5,662 5,662 414,218 1.35% 

  Personal Services Total: 7,649,321 7,649,321 0 401,578 401,578 7,247,743 5.25% 

                  

280 Reference Materials 83,000 83,000 0 0 0 83,000 0.00% 

281 Books 450,000 450,000 0 0 0 450,000 0.00% 

  Materials Total 533,000 533,000 0 0 0 533,000 0.00% 

                  

301 Office Supplies 100410 100,410 0 0 0 100,410 0.00% 

306 Janitorial Supplies 36000 36,000 0 0 0 36,000 0.00% 

308 Wearing Apparel 3,300 3,300 0 0 0 3,300 0.00% 

309 Fuel For Heating 77,000 77,000 0 0 0 77,000 0.00% 

312 Hardware 10,200 10,200 0 0 0 10,200 0.00% 

313 Misc. Supplies 1,000 1,000 0 0 0 1,000 0.00% 

314 Electrical Supplies 300 300 0 0 0 300 0.00% 

327 Nursery Supplies 300 300 0 0 0 300 0.00% 

361 Gas 2,000 2,000 0 0 0 2,000 0.00% 

C0397 Contingent 15,000 15,000 0 0 0 15,000 0.00% 

  Material and Supplies Total 245,510 245,510 0 0 0 245,510 0.00% 

                  

401 Insurance 108,920 108,920 0 0 0 108,920 0.00% 

402 Telephones 63,900 63,900 0 0 0 63,900 0.00% 

403 Printing 19,810 19,810 0 0 0 19,810 0.00% 

404 Lights and Power 169,500 169,500 0 0 0 169,500 0.00% 

405 Postage 3,100 3,100 0 0 0 3,100 0.00% 

406 Freight and Express 500 500 0 0 0 500 0.00% 

407 Equipment Maint. And Repair 47,700 47,700 0 0 0 47,700 0.00% 

408 Rental of Equipment 11,214 11,214 0 0 0 11,214 0.00% 

409 Building Maint. And Repair 85,000 85,000 0 0 0 85,000 0.00% 

410 Milage Allowance 685 685 0 0 0 685 0.00% 

413 Professional Fees 295,500 295,500 0 330 330 295,170 0.11% 

415 Outside Labor & Related Charges 311,500 311,500 0 0 0 311,500 0.00% 

419 Misc. Expenses 36,750 44,432 0 0 0 44,432 0.00% 

421 Rent   Riverfront 750,000 750,000 0 0 0 750,000 0.00% 

422 Janitorial Service 2,900 2,900 0 0 0 2,900 0.00% 

424 Maint. Of Office Equipment 3,400 3,400 0 0 0 3,400 0.00% 

425 Subscriptions and Publicationns 154,699 154,699 0 0 0 154,699 0.00% 

430 IT Hardware Maint. 52,000 52,000 0 0 0 52,000 0.00% 

431 IT Software Licensing and Maint. 479,100 479,100 0 0 0 479,100 0.00% 

436 Tuition/Bd/Travel Reimbursement 10,000 10,000 0 0 0 10,000 0.00% 

446 Automobile Repair 6,000 6,000 0 0 0 6,000 0.00% 

481 Binding of Books 600 600 0 0 0 600 0.00% 

496 Special Projects 30,000 30,000 0 0 0 30,000 0.00% 

497 Contingent 5,000 5,000           

  Contractual Services Total 2,647,778 2,655,460 0 330 330 2,650,130 0.01% 

                  

  Total Operating Budget 11,075,609 11,083,291 0 401,908 401,908 10,676,383 3.63% 

         

 Most July A/P invoices paid in August        
   



 

36 
 

 
 

 

YPL Operating Budget Fiscal 2023        
August         

Code Account Name 
Adopted 
Budget 

Current Budget 
(w/ transfers) 

Spent Previous 
Months 

Spent this 
Month (August) YTD Balance % used 

101 Salaries 6,578,527 6,578,527 359,230 475,371 834,601 5,743,926 12.69% 

103 Temp Services 615,914 615,914 33,294 42,959 76,253 539,661 12.38% 

150 Termination Payments 35,000 35,000 3,393 7,656 11,049 23,951 31.57% 

198 Overtime 419,880 378,880 5,662 6,742 12,404 366,476 3.27% 

  Personal Services Total: 7,649,321 7,608,321 401,579 532,728 934,307 6,674,014 12.28% 

                  

280 Reference Materials 83,000 83,000 0 66,322 66,322 16,678 79.91% 

281 Books 450,000 450,000 0 5,290 5,290 444,710 1.18% 

  Materials Total 533,000 533,000 0 71,612 71,612 461,388 13.44% 

                  

301 Office Supplies 100410 100,410 0 10,275 10,275 90,135 10.23% 

306 Janitorial Supplies 36000 36,000 0 13045 13,045 22,955 36.24% 

308 Wearing Apparel 3,300 3,300 0 56 56 3,244 1.71% 

309 Fuel For Heating 77,000 77,000 0 0 0 77,000 0.00% 

312 Hardware 10,200 10,200 0 3,415 3,415 6,785 33.48% 

313 Misc. Supplies 1,000 1,000 0 0 0 1,000 0.00% 

314 Electrical Supplies 300 300 0 0 0 300 0.00% 

327 Nursery Supplies 300 300 0 58 58 242 19.19% 

361 Gas 2,000 2,000 0 409 409 1,591 20.46% 

C0397 Contingent 15,000 15,000 0 0 0 15,000 0.00% 

  Material and Supplies Total 245,510 245,510 0 27,258 27,258 218,252 11.10% 

                  

401 Insurance 108,920 108,920 0 42,186 0 108,920 0.00% 

402 Telephones 63,900 63,900 0 8,998 8,998 54,902 14.08% 

403 Printing 19,810 19,810 0 0 0 19,810 0.00% 

404 Lights and Power 169,500 169,500 0 0 0 169,500 0.00% 

405 Postage 3,100 3,100 0 0 0 3,100 0.00% 

406 Freight and Express 500 500 0 4 4 496 0.72% 

407 Equipment Maint. And Repair 47,700 47,700 0 18,946 18,946 28,754 39.72% 

408 Rental of Equipment 11,214 52,214 0 31,027 31,027 21,187 59.42% 

409 Building Maint. And Repair 85,000 85,000 0 4,590 4,590 80,410 5.40% 

410 Milage Allowance 685 685 0 39 39 646 5.66% 

413 Professional Fees 295,500 295,500 330 240 570 294,930 0.19% 

415 Outside Labor & Related Charges 311,500 311,500 0 31,797 31,797 279,703 10.21% 

419 Misc. Expenses 36,750 44,432 0 -30 -30 44,462 -0.07% 

421 Rent   Riverfront 750,000 750,000 0 0 0 750,000 0.00% 

422 Janitorial Service 2,900 2,900 0 580 580 2,320 20.00% 

424 Maint. Of Office Equipment 3,400 3,400 0 0 0 3,400 0.00% 

425 Subscriptions and Publicationns 154,699 154,699 0 37,955 37,955 116,744 24.53% 

430 IT Hardware Maint. 52,000 52,000 0 7,625 7,625 44,375 14.66% 

431 IT Software Licensing and Maint. 479,100 479,100 0 172,138 172,138 306,962 35.93% 

436 Tuition/Bd/Travel Reimbursement 10,000 10,000 0 329 329 9,671 3.29% 

446 Automobile Repair 6,000 6,000 0 295 295 5,705 4.92% 

481 Binding of Books 600 600 0 0 0 600 0.00% 

496 Special Projects 30,000 30,000 0 12,676 12,676 17,324 42.25% 

497 Contingent 5,000 5,000 0         

  Contractual Services Total 2,647,778 2,696,460 330 369,395 327,539 2,363,921 12.15% 

                  

  Total Operating Budget 11,075,609 11,083,291 401,909 1,000,993 1,360,716 9,717,575 12.28% 

         
 Moved Overtime Money to Rental of Equipment for Will chiller rental      
           
 Most July invoices paid in Aug.         

   



 

37 
 

 
 

 

Yonkers Public Library (YPL) Board of Trustees Meeting 

Management Report 

September 15, 2022 

 

Summer 2022 Review: Summer 2022 was the busiest period of in-branch activity since the beginning of the 

COVID-19 pandemic, particularly at Riverfront Library. Gate counts for Summer 2022 increased by 70% at 

Riverfront, 57% at Grinton I. Will and 80% at Crestwood over Summer 2021 visits: 

 

 
 

Some other highlights of the summer included: 

 

● Summer Reading Buddies: for five weeks, YPL partnered with the Family Services Society of 

Yonkers (FSSY) to host the Summer Reading Buddies program at Riverfront Library. Over 360 

students participated, along with 113 mentors. The program included STEM programs and take home 

kits, along with  workshops for students and parents on topics ranging from financial literacy to 

nutrition. Various elected officials participated in the program, including Mayor Mike Spano, 

Congressmember Jamaal Bowman, Westchester County Executive George Latimer, and New York 

State Senate Majority Leader Andrea Stewart-Cousins. Parent feedback was overwhelmingly positive 

and guests frequently commented on how well the library looked and operated. 

. 

● Summer Meal Program: YPL once again partnered with Yonkers Public Schools (YPS) to offer free 

meals at the Riverfront Library and Grinton I. Will Library. Over 18,300 meals were distributed, the 

vast majority of them at Riverfront Library. Additional meals were provided for Summer Reading 

Buddy participants and parents. 

 



 

38 
 

 
 

 

● Summer STEM Programs: Thanks to funding support from Westchester County Board of Legislators 

and Legislator Jose Alvarado, YPL hosted a series of seven weekly STEM “camps” at Riverfront 

Library and Will Library. Each camp consisted of a daily 90 minute session, four days a week. Topics 

included coding with Scratch and Python, 3D printing, Minecraft building, and PiskelApp. Every 

session filled up almost instantaneously, and altogether over 530 students participated. 100% of 

parents surveyed reported that their children enjoyed the camp and were satisfied with instructors. 

Special thanks goes to Christine Bitetti, Technology Instruction Supervisor, for organizing the camps. 

 

Will Library HVAC Update: After several failed attempts to fix the Will Library chiller, YPL determined it 

could no longer depend on it for reliable service. In July, YPL procured a rental unit from United Rentals. 

After securing a temporary solution, the library began the process of finding a permanent replacement. YPL 

contracted with KG&D Architects and their engineering consultants Barile Gallagher Associates to design a 

replacement, develop bid documents, and manage construction. The project is currently in the design phase 

and will replace the chiller and cooling tower with a modern air cooled chiller/heat pump system. This will be 

a cleaner, quieter, safer and more energy efficient solution to the preexisting system. YPL applied for a New 

York State Library Construction Aid grant to cover partial costs for the project, and is awaiting final approval. 

YPL hopes to replace the system in time for Summer 2023 but will be better prepared for a temporary 

solution if necessary. 

 

Meeting Room Improvements: YPL continued its campaign to beautify and modernize its meeting rooms 

over the summer. Will Library’s Projection Room, Conference Room and Computer Lab all received new 

furniture to match the mid-century architecture of the building. Additionally, Riverfront Library’s Community 

Room A+B had new tables and chairs installed earlier in the summer and received its first paint job in twenty 

years in August. The Riverfront Community Room improvements were funded through a Community 

Development Block Grant. 

 

Library Grounds Improvements: Over the summer, YPL also made efforts to beautify and improve its 

outdoor areas at Will Library and Crestwood Library, which proved to be valuable programming and 

gathering spaces during the COVID-19 Pandemic:  

 

● Crestwood Library: refreshed its aging patio furniture with a new picnic table, reading benches, and 

Adirondack chairs. All of the furniture matches the library’s Tudor timbering, and is made of a 

recycled plastic material that is resilient and easy to clean and maintain.  

 

● Will Library: extended its partnership with Groundwork Hudson Valley’s Green Team. Earlier this 

month the Green Team constructed raised container beds along the south auditorium wall and filled 

them with edible herbs. It is considered an accessible garden because the container beds are at a 

height that can be tended by people in wheelchairs. 

 



 

39 
 

 
 

 

1000 Books Before Kindergarten Relaunch: As part of the 1000 Books Before Kindergarten relaunch, 

staff worked with Mario Pereira, graphic designer, to create new program material including an updated 

mascot, an early literacy milestone calendar and a strategy for continued engagement beyond the initial 

registration period. The mascot is a turtle, which is not only native to the Hudson River and Bronx River, but 

signals to parents/caregivers and the child that reading isn’t a race and should be done regularly. The 

“Milestone of Early Literacy Development” starts a child’s journey from age 6 months to 5 years marking 

significant developments in their communication and cognition. It uses those milestones to connect 

parents/caregivers with the correct types of books to read. This document was initially brainstormed at a 

meeting with educators from Sarah Lawrence’s Child Development Institute and created to be a guide for 

parents that is evidence-based and grounded in science. Lastly, the team has strategized on creating 

engagement opportunities to ensure the kids continue reading and making progress. This includes a river 

mural where kids can move their “turtle” upstream every 100 books they read. The program will have a soft 

launch at Westchester Jewish Community Services Infant-toddler Learning Center on October 3.    

  

  



 

40 
 

 
 

 

 

Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21 Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22 Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22

Present 12 mo. period 45508 45194 43357 42345 42907 42445 49229 47567 44911 49525 56877 60468

Previous 12 mo. period 48249 47643 40546 35009 34405 34779 40599 40559 39763 45105 54294 53983

-5.7% -5.1% 6.9% 21.0% 24.7% 22.0% 21.3% 17.3% 12.9% 9.8% 4.8% 12.0%

Aug-21 Aug-22 Aug-21 Aug-22

_audiobook 541 465 -76 -14.0% 1.0% 0.8%

_biography 505 633 128 25.3% 0.9% 1.0%

_express 371 452 81 21.8% 0.7% 0.7%

_fiction 5886 6295 409 6.9% 10.9% 10.4%

_foreign_language 253 420 167 66.0% 0.5% 0.7%

_juv_audiobook 99 97 -2 -2.0% 0.2% 0.2%

_juv_fiction 13735 16594 2859 20.8% 25.4% 27.4%

_juv_foreign 296 335 39 13.2% 0.5% 0.6%

_juv_movie 1461 1603 142 9.7% 2.7% 2.7%

_juv_nonfiction 1955 2695 740 37.9% 3.6% 4.5%

_magazine 134 156 22 16.4% 0.2% 0.3%

_movie 7049 6893 -156 -2.2% 13.1% 11.4%

_music 1733 1773 40 2.3% 3.2% 2.9%

_new_book 1978 2902 924 46.7% 3.7% 4.8%

_nonfiction 4374 4396 22 0.5% 8.1% 7.3%

_ya_av 238 387 149 62.6% 0.4% 0.6%

_ya_fiction 2460 2837 377 15.3% 4.6% 4.7%

_ya_nonfiction 338 455 117 34.6% 0.6% 0.8%

_Electronic Content Use 9867 10335 468 4.7% 18.3% 17.1%

_audiobook

_biography

_express

Circulation Profile:

-0.2%

0.1%

0.1%

_fiction

_foreign_language

_juv_audiobook

_juv_fiction

_juv_foreign

_ya_nonfiction

_juv_movie

_juv_nonfiction

_magazine

_movie

_music

-0.8%

_new_book

_nonfiction

_ya_av

_ya_fiction

-1.2%_Electronic Content Use

-0.5%

0.2%

0.2%

0.1%

0.1%

0.0%

2.0%

0.0%

-0.1%

0.8%

0.0%

-1.7%

-0.3%

1.1%

10000

20000

30000

40000

50000

60000

70000

80000

90000

Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21 Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22 Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22

Present 12 mo. period Previous 12 mo. period



 

41 
 

 
 

 

  

Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug

Present 12 Month Period 9812 10201 9799 9399 8169 8702 10611 10450 9641 11129 13249 14637

Previous 12 Month Period 9807 9186 7995 5654 5579 5533 7584 6928 6918 8405 11229 11756

0.1% 11.0% 22.6% 66.2% 46.4% 57.3% 39.9% 50.8% 39.4% 32.4% 18.0% 24.5%

Aug-21 Aug-22 Aug-21 Aug-22

_audiobook 114 90 -24 -21.1% 1.0% 0.6%

_biography 121 148 27 22.3% 1.0% 1.0%

_express 211 266 55 26.1% 1.8% 1.8%

_fiction 1287 1449 162 12.6% 10.9% 9.9%

_foreign_language 154 291 137 89.0% 1.3% 2.0%

_juvenile_audiobook 16 9 -7 -43.8% 0.1% 0.1%

_juvenile_fiction 3321 4482 1161 35.0% 28.2% 30.6%

_juvenile_foreign 143 210 67 46.9% 1.2% 1.4%

_juvenile_movie 407 510 103 25.3% 3.5% 3.5%

_juvenile_nonfiction 353 511 158 44.8% 3.0% 3.5%

_magazine 1 3 2 200.0% 0.0% 0.0%

_movie 2074 2425 351 16.9% 17.6% 16.6%

_music 237 284 47 19.8% 2.0% 1.9%

_new_book 241 384 143 59.3% 2.1% 2.6%

_nonfiction 1214 1323 109 9.0% 10.3% 9.0%

_young_adult_av 143 182 39 27.3% 1.2% 1.2%

_young_adult_fiction 1076 1343 267 24.8% 9.2% 9.2%

_young_adult_nonfiction 123 173 50 40.7% 1.0% 1.2%

0.6%

-1.3%

0.0%

0.0%

0.1%

0.0%

0.5%

0.0%

-1.1%

-0.1%

-1.0%

0.7%

-0.1%

2.4%

0.2%

_new_book

_nonfiction

_young_adult_av

_young_adult_fiction

_young_adult_nonfiction

_juvenile_movie

_juvenile_nonfiction

_magazine

_movie

_music

_fiction

_foreign_language

_juvenile_audiobook

_juvenile_fiction

_juvenile_foreign

_audiobook

_biography

_express

-0.4%

0.0%

0.0%

Circulation Profile:

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

30000

Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug

Present 12 Month Period Previous 12 Month Period



 

42 
 

 
 

 

  

Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug

Present 12 month period 24025 23574 21930 21304 21763 21901 26072 24614 22051 24869 29002 30817

Previous 12 month period 25283 24861 19726 15789 16573 17752 21019 22280 20815 24351 29135 28046

-5.0% -5.2% 11.2% 34.9% 31.3% 23.4% 24.0% 10.5% 5.9% 2.1% -0.5% 9.9%

Aug-21 Aug-22 Aug-21 Aug-22

_audiobook 387 318 -69 -17.8% 1.4% 1.0%

_biography 311 404 93 29.9% 1.1% 1.3%

_express 140 167 27 19.3% 0.5% 0.5%

_fiction 3997 4057 60 1.5% 14.3% 13.2%

_foreign_language 89 122 33 37.1% 0.3% 0.4%

_juv_audiobook 58 58 0 0.0% 0.2% 0.2%

_juv_fiction 9125 10990 1,865 20.4% 32.5% 35.7%

_juv_foreign 134 120 -14 -10.4% 0.5% 0.4%

_juv_movie 961 1005 44 4.6% 3.4% 3.3%

_juv_nonfiction 1339 1879 540 40.3% 4.8% 6.1%

_magazine 81 85 4 4.9% 0.3% 0.3%

_movie 4487 3962 -525 -11.7% 16.0% 12.9%

_music 1350 1372 22 1.6% 4.8% 4.5%

_new_book 1270 1955 685 53.9% 4.5% 6.3%

_nonfiction 2676 2459 -217 -8.1% 9.5% 8.0%

_ya_av 59 151 92 155.9% 0.2% 0.5%

_ya_fiction 1243 1346 103 8.3% 4.4% 4.4%

_ya-nonfiction 183 218 35 19.1% 0.7% 0.7%_ya-nonfiction

0.0%

-1.1%

0.1%

0.3%

-0.1%

0.1%

0.0%

3.1%

-0.1%

-0.2%

1.3%

0.0%

-3.1%

-0.4%

1.8%

-1.6%

_music

_new_book

_nonfiction

_ya_av

_ya_fiction

_juv_foreign

_juv_movie

_juv_nonfiction

_magazine

_movie

_express

_fiction

_foreign_language

_juv_audiobook

_juv_fiction

Circulation Profile:

_audiobook

_biography

-0.3%

0.2%

0

10000

20000

30000

40000

50000

Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug

Present 12 month period Previous 12 month period



 

43 
 

 
 

 

  

Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21 Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22 Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22

Present 12 month period 3379 3415 3187 3246 3320 3630 3692 3650 3748 4214 4617 4679

Previous 12 month period 3663 3663 3180 3602 3319 3290 3549 3412 3517 4088 4150 4314

-7.8% -6.8% 0.2% -9.9% 0.0% 10.3% 4.0% 7.0% 6.6% 3.1% 11.3% 8.5%

Aug-21 Aug-22 Aug-21 Aug-22

_audiobook 40 57 17 42.5% 0.9% 1.2%

_biography 73 81 8 11.0% 1.7% 1.7%

_express 20 19 -1 -5.0% 0.5% 0.4%

_fiction 602 789 187 31.1% 14.0% 16.9%

_foreign_language 10 7 -3 -30.0% 0.2% 0.1%

_juv_audiobook 25 30 5 20.0% 0.6% 0.6%

_juv_fiction 1289 1122 -167 -13.0% 29.9% 24.0%

_juv_foreign 19 5 -14 -73.7% 0.4% 0.1%

_juv_movie 93 88 -5 -5.4% 2.2% 1.9%

_juv_nonfiction 263 305 42 16.0% 6.1% 6.5%

_magazine 52 68 16 30.8% 1.2% 1.5%

_movie 488 506 18 3.7% 11.3% 10.8%

_music 146 117 -29 -19.9% 3.4% 2.5%

_nonfiction 484 614 130 26.9% 11.2% 13.1%

_new_book 467 563 96 20.6% 10.8% 12.0%

_ya_av 36 54 18 50.0% 0.8% 1.2%

_ya_fiction 141 148 7 5.0% 3.3% 3.2%

_ya_nonfiction 32 64 32 100.0% 0.7% 1.4%

_ya_av

_ya_fiction

_ya_nonfiction 0.6%

_audiobook

_biography

_express

_fiction

_foreign_language

_juv_audiobook

_juv_fiction

_juv_foreign

_juv_movie

_juv_nonfiction

_magazine

_movie

_music

_nonfiction

_new_book

-0.9%

1.9%

1.2%

0.3%

-0.1%

-0.3%

-0.3%

0.4%

0.2%

-0.5%

-0.1%

2.9%

-0.1%

0.1%

-5.9%

Circulation Profile:

0.3%

0.0%

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21 Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22 Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22

Present 12 month period Previous 12 month period



 

            

           

           

           

           

           

           

           

           

           

           

           

  Riverfront Grinton I. Will Crestwood 
YPL Total Count 

  Count Hours 
Per 

Hour Count Hours 
Per 

Hour Count Hours 
Per 

Hour 

Jun-21 9,599 216 44 10,219 216 47 823 109 8 20,641 

Jul-21 11,918 214 56 12,693 207 61 649 107 6 25,260 

Aug-21 14,981 218 69 11,918 218 55 508 109 5 27,407 

Sep-21 15,096 221 68 14,656 221 66 - - 0 29,752 

Oct-21 12,764 225 57 18,955 225 84 - - 0 31,719 

Nov-21 13,225 209 63 13,931 209 67 288 31 9 27,444 

Dec-21 14,212 231 62 11,911 231 52 929 124 7 27,052 

Jan-22 9,217 184 50 11,835 184 64 389 112 3 21,441 

Feb-22 12,668 195 65 14,720 195 75 603 105 6 27,991 

Mar-22 17,863 243 74 15,825 243 65 786 124 6 34,474 

Apr-22 15,891 229 69 15,725 229 69 799 123 6 32,415 

May-22 13,462 254 53 14,969 248 60 1,099 191 6 29,530 

Jun-22 16,129 253 64 18,021 248 73 1,222 191 6 35,372 

Jul-22 22,734 236 96 18,205 230 79 1,245 178 7 42,184 

Aug-22 23,328 261 89 18,627 261 71 1,084 190 6 43,039 

Source: Gate counters at public entrances of all three buildings. Figures include staff entries and exits.   

Notes: Crestwood Library closed in September and October due to Hurricane Ida; reopened Nov. 22   

 -

 5,000

 10,000

 15,000

 20,000

 25,000

 30,000

 35,000

 40,000

 45,000

 50,000

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

T
o

ta
l 
C

o
u
n
t 
(Y

P
L
)

C
o
u
n
t 
p
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 H

o
u
r 

(b
ra

n
c
h
)

YPL Total Count Riverfront Grinton I. Will Crestwood



 

45 
 

 
 

 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Daily OverDrive Checkouts

Adult Fiction Rolling Monthly Adult Non-Fiction Rolling Monthly

Juvenile Fiction Rolling Monthly Juvenile Non-Fiction Rolling Monthly

Y/A Fiction Rolling Monthly Y/A Non-Fiction Rolling Monthly

Other Rolling Monthly Daily Total

Adult 

Fiction

Adult 

Non-Fiction

Juvenile 

Fiction

Juvenile 

Non-Fiction

Y/A 

Fiction

Y/A 

Non-Fiction TOTAL

Aug-21 4375 1415 1215 128 539 41 7972

Sep-21 3964 1250 793 63 402 18 6708

Oct-21 3801 1257 603 76 320 17 6257

Nov-21 3811 1231 613 91 431 12 6587

Dec-21 4106 1355 521 59 364 15 6675

Jan-22 4625 1517 550 87 466 29 7642

Feb-22 4015 1281 481 116 399 24 6584

Mar-22 4314 1315 568 103 460 11 7115

Apr-22 4165 1388 583 117 401 9 6982

May-22 4524 1435 750 121 399 16 7466

Jun-22 4529 1319 812 90 392 23 7403

Jul-22 5054 1366 824 102 466 18 8095

Aug-22 5306 1440 825 142 491 24 8546



 

46 
 

 
 

 

 

Audiobook Comic eBook Movie Music Television Total New Patrons

Jul-21 396 87 308 79 42 158 1070 33

Aug-21 467 122 280 96 45 149 1159 10

Sep-21 389 89 222 89 44 119 952 14

Oct-21 452 74 225 94 63 160 1068 11

Nov-21 457 114 245 113 65 144 1138 13

Dec-21 408 82 244 99 70 108 1015 51

Jan-22 480 86 304 117 55 115 1168 15

Feb-22 412 97 208 120 73 138 1061 16

Mar-22 448 83 260 71 68 133 1071 18

Apr-22 478 99 244 99 47 139 1111 13

May-22 466 111 240 95 81 168 1171 13

Jun-22 479 100 212 91 61 127 1085 21

Jul-22 477 83 231 90 61 105 1056 25

Hoopla Circulation

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000

Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21 Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22 Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22

733 629 679 715 704 849 578 658 764 834 825 858 789

Kanopy Downloads



 

47 
 

 
 

 

AUGUST 2022 

 

 

 

Number of volumes at end of previous month         154,633  

Number of volumes added this month                  826  

TOTAL         155,459  

Number of volumes lost/withdrawn this month                  221                            

TOTAL VOLUMES RIVERFRONT LIBRARY         155,238   147,939 

 

Number of volumes at end of previous month        153,763  

Number of volumes added this month                 968  

TOTA L         154,731  

Number of volumes lost/withdrawn this month              2,209  

TOTAL VOLUMES GRINTON I. WILL BRANCH         152,522   149,297 

 

Number of volumes at end of previous month           26,425  

Number of volumes added this month                   21            

TOTAL           26,446  

Number of volumes lost/withdrawn this month                       0     

TOTAL CRESTWOOD BRANCH           26,446     30,622 

 

TOTAL VOLUMES IN YONKERS PUBLIC LIBRARY        334,206   327,858 

 

 

  

RIVERFRONT LIBRARY           2022     2021
     2003 

 
 

GRINTON I. WILL BRANCH          
 

 

CRESTWOOD BRANCH        
 

 



 

48 
 

 
 

 

  



 

49 
 

 
 

 

 



 

50 
 

 
 

 



 

51 
 

 
 

 



 

52 
 

 
 

 



 

53 
 

 
 

 

OFFICIAL COMPILATION OF CODES, RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE STATE OF 
NEW YORK 

TITLE 8. EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 
CHAPTER II. REGULATIONS OF THE COMMISSIONER 

SUBCHAPTER D. LIBRARIES 
PART 90. PUBLIC AND FREE ASSOCIATION LIBRARIES 

 

8 CRR-NY 90.12 
8 CRR-NY 90.12 

90.12 State aid for library construction. 
 

 
(a) Definitions. 

As used in this section and in Education Law, section 273-a: 

(1) Library means public, free association and Indian libraries, as defined in section 253 of the Education Law, 
which are members of public library systems. 

(2) Library system means a public library system, as defined in subdivision 1 of section 272 of the Education Law. 

(3) Library construction means: 

(i) the construction or acquisition of a building for library purposes, including construction of a building for library 
purposes pursuant to a lease-purchase agreement; or 

(ii) the renovation or rehabilitation of a building already owned by a library; or 

(iii) renovation or rehabilitation of a building to be leased for library purposes, including renovation or rehabilitation 
of a building for library purposes pursuant to a lease-purchase agreement. 

(4) Acquisition means the purchase of a site for library purposes and/or an existing building suitable for 
conversion to library purposes. 

(5) Renovation means the overall improvement or conversion of an existing building, exclusive of routine 
maintenance, resulting in increased operational efficiency and economy. 

(6) Rehabilitation means the restoration of an existing library building, exclusive of routine maintenance, with 
particular emphasis on energy conservation, accommodation for computer equipment, or access by physically 
handicapped persons. 

(7) Broadband library services means providing a high speed internet connection for library users, including but 
not limited to internal and external connections, at a minimum speed prescribed by the commissioner using such 
means as wireless, fiber, cable, white space and similar products. 

(b) Application procedures. 

(1) Each public library system shall submit to the commissioner, no later than a prescribed date, as part of a plan 
of service, a plan by which it will accept, review, and make recommendations on applications as required by 
Education Law, section 273-a(2). 

(2) When the applicant is a library, the governing board of the system of which it is a member shall indicate to the 
commissioner its approval of such application by stating the extent to which the project for which State aid is 



 

54 
 

 
 

 

requested will assist the applicant to provide more effective service within the system's standards of organization 
and service. 

(3) When the applicant is a library system board, the application shall describe how the State-aided project will 
improve system services to member libraries and users. 

(4) The library system board shall rank the applications from its system area in order of its recommendations, 
giving particular attention to the service needs of any communities which are isolated or economically 
disadvantaged, or located beyond the reasonable service capabilities of other libraries which are members of 
such library system. 

(5) The library system board, upon request by the commissioner, shall provide the eligibility criteria for 
applications designated as projects serving economically disadvantaged communities pursuant to Education Law 
section 273-a(2)(e), for each recommended application. 

(c) Content of applications. 

Each application shall assure that: 

(1) when the construction project is completed, adequate operating support and resources will be available to 
sustain an improved level of service as reflected by the schedule of library open hours, the number of professional 
and nonprofessional staff needed to provide such service, and the upgrading of the inventory of all types of library 
materials; 

(2) the nonstate share of the cost of the project is or will be available; 

(3) the project has been started or will begin within 180 days after approval by the commissioner and will be 
completed promptly and in accordance with the application; 

(4) the approved project will be conducted in accordance with all applicable Federal, State and local laws and 
regulations; 

(5) the project has not been completed prior to the date of application; 

(6) where required by law, competitive bidding procedures will be followed; and 

(7) the premises constructed, acquired, renovated, rehabilitated or leased will be usable for library purposes for at 
least 10 years from completion of the project. 

(d) Criteria for approval of an application. 

Approval of construction project applications will be based in part upon the degree to which each project will result 
in: 

(1) more effective library service to the library's service area, as evidenced by new library programs and user 
accommodations resulting from the increased and improved building space and capacity; 

(2) more efficient utilization of the library building, resulting in such economies as increased energy conservation 
and increased staff efficiency; 

(3) improved access to and use of building services by all library users, including physically handicapped persons; 

(4) the provision of library services in communities which are geographically isolated or economically 
disadvantaged; and 

(5) the satisfaction of such other criteria as the commissioner may deem appropriate. 



 

55 
 

 
 

 

(e) Costs. 

Pursuant to Education Law, section 273-a: 

(1) Costs eligible for approval shall include: 

(i) construction or acquisition of a library building; 

(ii) renovation or rehabilitation of a library building; 

(iii) renovation or rehabilitation of leased property to be used for library purposes; 

(iv) acquisition of vacant land to be used for library purposes; 

(v) purchase and installation of initial equipment and furnishings as a project component of subparagraph (i), (ii) 
or (iii) of this paragraph; 

(vi) purchase, installation and replacement of a library building’s broadband services infrastructure, including but 
not limited to internal and external connections, either as a stand-alone project or as a project component of 
subparagraph (i), (ii) or (iii) of this paragraph; 

(vii) site preparation and grading as a project component of subparagraph (i), (ii), (iii) or (iv) of this paragraph; 

(viii) replacement of a library building's mechanicals, including, but not limited to, heating, ventilation, air 
conditioning, cooling, electrical, and plumbing systems; 

(ix) replacment of permanent components of a library building, including, but not limited to, windows, doors, roofs, 
and lighting systems; 

(x) purchase and installation of permanent signage (with or without lighting, internal or external), which is used for 
library purposes; 

(xi) purchase and installation of one or more generators for library purposes; 

(xii) purchase and installation of assistive listening devices and systems for the deaf and hearing impaired, which 
shall include but not be limited to, hearing loops, FM systems and infrared systems; and 

(xiii) project management of the construction, renovation, rehabilitation or broadband library services 
infrastructure project; 

(xiv) architectural and engineering plans for locally approved new or ongoing projects; and 

(xv) such other costs as may be approved by the commissioner. 

(2) Costs ineligible for approval shall include, but shall not be limited to: 

(i) speculative architectural and engineering plans and feasibility studies; 

(ii) building consultant studies; 

(iii) interest or carrying charges on bonds financing the project; 

(iv) purchase of books and other library materials; 

(v) ongoing service fees for telecommunications and broadband services; 

(vi) landscaping; and 



 

56 
 

 
 

 

(vii) routine maintenance. 

(f) Schedule of payment of State aid for library construction. 

(1) Fifty percent payment of awarded State aid for approved costs of the project will be made after notification of 
applicant by the commissioner of approval for funding. 

(2) Forty percent of such aid shall be payable in the State fiscal year following the year in which funding was 
provided. 

(3) The 10-percent final payment will be made after submission of satisfactory evidence that the project has been 
completed in accordance with the terms of the approved application. 

(g) Reports. 

The following reports shall be made to the commissioner on the forms and by the dates prescribed by the 
commissioner: 

(1) Each recipient of State aid pursuant to Education Law, section 273-a, shall report on the status of the 
approved project, including a final cost report. 

(2) Upon request by the commissioner, a library system board shall report on the anticipated State aid necessary 
for eligible projects to be completed in its service area. 

(3) Upon request by the commissioner, a library system board shall submit a report detailing the status of each 
project for which an application was submitted by a member library and not recommended for approval, or was 
approved but for which no State aid was provided. 

(4) Any other reports the commissioner shall deem necessary to carry out the purpose of this program. 

 


